
 

 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

August 07, 2023 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners August 07, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

Please silence cell phones. 

Agenda 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

August 07, 2023; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library - Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

Call to Order 

Closed Session - Discuss personnel and consult with the County Attorney. 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

Pastor Bill Blake, Old Trap Methodist Church 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Employee Recognition - Beverly Fonville

ITEM 4. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Public Hearing for Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances - Amber

Curling

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson

B. Well Site 4 Bids and Contract Award - Chuck Jones



 

Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 07, 2023 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Library Board 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes 

B. Budget Amendments 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

E. Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Tax Collection Report 

G. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

H. Tourism Development Authority Bylaws Update 

I. Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant 

J. NC Dept. of Health and Human Services Request 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. NC Forest Service Annual Report 

D. New High School Progress Report 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.A 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Beverly Fonville, 

 Human Resources 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Employee Recognition 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Staff that have reached milestone employment anniversaries will be recognized with service 

pins. 

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Public Hearings 

Item Number: 5.A

Meeting Date:  August 07, 2023

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

Planning & Zoning 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title  Public Hearing - Text Amendment to the Camden County 

Code of Ordinances 

Attachments: AgendaSummary_TextAmendmentPH_2023_08_07

(DOCX) 

PH_Ordinance_TextAmendment2023_08_07 (002)

(DOCX) 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 5



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   August 8, 2023 

 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2023-08-01 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Public Hearing - Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances 

 

 

Summary: 

 

The attached proposed ordinance presents a text change to the Camden County Unified Development 

Ordinance.  The language change is necessary for clarification of the requirements. 

 

The Text amendment will amend the Camden County Code of Ordinances Chapter 151 for the following 

Articles:  

Article 3 Zoning Districts:  3.5.2 Working Lands District and 3.5.3 Rural Residential District 

Dimensional Requirements as follows 

Article 6 Subdivision Requirements:  6.5.2 Conservation Subdivision Applicability 

Article 7 Environmental Provisions:  7.5.2 Open Space Set-Aside Applicability 

Article 5 Development Standards:  5.1.2 Commercial Design Standards 

 

The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion  

 Approve Ordinance 2023-08-01 Text Amendment to the language of the Camden County Code 

of Ordinance Chapter 151 for clarification to specific sections of Articles 3, 5, 6, and 7. 

 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
aS

u
m

m
ar

y_
T

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
tP

H
_2

02
3_

08
_0

7 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



Ordinance No. 2023-08-01 
UDO No. 2023-04-032 

An Ordinance 
Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 

Camden County, North Carolina 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as follows: 
 
Article I:  Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances of Camden 
County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and 
subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden 
County Code. 
 
Article II:  Construction 
 
For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as additions to existing Ordinance 
language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered deletions to existing language. New language 
of proposed ordinance shall be shown in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 
 
Article III:   
 
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 151 specifically: 

Article 3 Zoning Districts:  3.5.2 Working Lands District and 3.5.3 Rural Residential District 
Dimensional Requirements 

Article 6 Subdivision Requirements:  6.5.2 Conservation Subdivision Applicability 
Article 7 Environmental Provisions:  7.5.2 Open Space Set-Aside Applicability 
Article 5 Development Standards:  5.1.2 Commercial Design Standards 

3.5.2. WORKING LANDS (WL) DISTRICT 
 

WL 

Working 

Lands 

A. Purpose Statement 

The Working Lands (WL) district is established to accommodate 
agriculture, agriculturally-related uses, and limited forms residential 
development at very low densities in rural portions of the County.  The 
district is primarily intended to preserve and protect bona fide farms 
and resource lands for current or future agricultural use as well as to 
protect the rural character of the area.  One of the primary tools for 
character protection is the requirement to configure residential 
subdivisions when of more than five five or more lots are created as 
conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach 
seeks to minimize the visibility of new residential development from 
adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening, and 
allows farmers to capture a portion of the land’s development potential 
while continuing to farm.  Conservation subdivisions allow a portion of 
a tract or site to be developed with single-family detached homes while 
the balance of the site is left as conservation or agricultural land.  The 
district also accommodates a wide range of agricultural and 
agricultural-related uses like “agri-tourism” as well as service and 
support uses to the rural community, including day care, educational 
uses, public safety facilities, parks, and utility features. 

B. Dimensional Requirements 

# STANDARD TYPE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR 

TRADITIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONSERVATION 

SUBDIVISIONS [1] 

A Minimum Development Size (acres) N/A 10 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
_O

rd
in

an
ce

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t2
02

3_
08

_0
7 

(0
02

) 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



B Maximum Residential Density (units/acre) 0.2 1 

C Minimum Lot Area (acres) 5 1 

D Minimum Lot Width (feet) [2] [8] 300 60 

E Maximum Lot Coverage (% of lot area) [3] 24 72 

F Minimum Open Space (% of development size) [4] None 50 

G Minimum Front Setback (feet) 50 20 

H Minimum Corner Side Setback (feet) 50 20 

I Minimum Interior Side Setback (feet) 25 10 

J Minimum Rear Setback (feet) 25 15 

K Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Front-to-Back (feet) [5] 20 10 

L Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Side-to-Side (feet) [5] 15 5 

M Minimum Accessory Building Setback (feet) 10 3 

N Minimum Setback from Agricultural Activity (feet) [6] 50 50 

O Maximum Building Height (feet) 35 [7] 35 

NOTES: 
[1] Residential developments of when five or more lots are created shall be configured as a conservation subdivision in accordance with the 
standards in Section 6.5 Conservation Subdivision. 
[2] Lots on a cul-de-sac street shall maintain a minimum frontage of 35 feet and shall maintain 80 percent of the required minimum lot width 
at a point located 50 feet from the street right-of-way edge. 
[3] The maximum lot coverage may be increased with approval from NCDEQ and compliance with all applicable stormwater management 
requirements. 
[4] Applied to residential subdivisions and nonresidential developments. 
[5] Applied in cases where there are two or more principal buildings on the same lot. 
[6] Setback is applied from the perimeter of agricultural activity occurring on the same or an adjacent lot. 
[7] Maximum building height may be increased to 50 feet for agricultural or agricultural-related uses. 
[8] Transfer Plats shall maintain a minimum lot width of 125 feet. 

 
  

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
_O

rd
in

an
ce

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t2
02

3_
08

_0
7 

(0
02

) 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



3.5.3.  RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR) DISTRICT 
 

RR 

Rural 

Residential 

A. Purpose 
Statement 

The Rural Residential (RR) district is established to accommodate 
low density residential neighborhoods and supporting uses on lots 
near bona fide farms and agricultural areas in the rural portion of 
the County.  The district is intended to accommodate residential 
development in ways that will not interfere with agricultural activity 
or negatively impact the rural character of the County. One of the 
primary tools for character protection is the requirement to 
configure residential subdivisions when of more than five five or 
more lots are created as conservation subdivisions.  The 
conservation subdivision approach seeks to minimize the visibility 
of new residential development from adjacent roadways through 
proper placement and screening.  The district accommodates 
several differing agricultural uses and single-family detached 
homes.  It also allows supporting uses like educational facilities, 
parks, public safety facilities, and utilities.  District regulations 
discourage uses that interfere with the development of residential 
dwellings or that are detrimental to the rural nature of the district. 

C. Dimensional Requirements 

# STANDARD TYPE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR 

TRADITIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIREMENTS FOR 

CONSERVATION 

SUBDIVISIONS [1] 

A Minimum Development Size (acres) N/A 10 

B Maximum Residential Density (units/acre) 0.5 1 

C Minimum Lot Area (acres) 2 1 

D Minimum Lot Width (feet) [2] 125 60 

E Maximum Lot Coverage (% of lot area) [3] 24 72 

F Minimum Open Space (% of development size) [4] None 50 

G Minimum Front Setback (feet) 50 20 

H Minimum Corner Side Setback (feet) 50 20 

I Minimum Interior Side Setback (feet) 25 10 

J Minimum Rear Setback (feet) 25 15 

K Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Front-to-Back (feet) [5] 20 10 

L Minimum Distance Between Buildings, Side-to-Side (feet) [5] 15 5 

M Minimum Accessory Building Setback (feet) 10 3 

N Maximum Building Height (feet) 35 [6] 35 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
_O

rd
in

an
ce

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t2
02

3_
08

_0
7 

(0
02

) 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



NOTES: 
[1] Residential developments of when five or more lots are created shall be configured as a conservation subdivision in accordance with the 
standards in Section 6.5 Conservation Subdivision. 
[2] Lots on a cul-de-sac street shall maintain a minimum frontage of 35 feet and shall maintain 80 percent of the required minimum lot width 
at a point located 50 feet from the street right-of-way edge. 
[3] The maximum lot coverage may be increased with approval from NCDEQ and compliance with all applicable stormwater management 
requirements. 
[4] Applied to residential subdivisions and nonresidential developments. 
[5] Applied in cases where there are two or more principal buildings on the same lot. 
[6] Maximum building height may be increased to 50 feet for agricultural or agricultural-related uses. 

 

6.5 CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION 
 

6.5.2 APPLICABILITY 

A. Type of Development 
This conservation subdivision option shall be limited to development of single-family detached residential 
dwellings on individual lots in subdivisions when of more than five five or more lots are created.  The 
conservation subdivision option shall not be available for any other form of development or use type. 

B. Where Required 
Single-family detached residential subdivisions when of more than five five or more lots are created in the WL 
and RR districts shall be configured as conservation subdivisions, in accordance with the standards in this 
section. 

C. Where Allowed 
Single-family detached residential subdivisions when of more than five five or more lots are created in the SR 
and PD districts may be developed as a conservation subdivision, in accordance with the standards in this 
section. 

 

7.5.2. APPLICABILITY  
A. Generally  

1. Unless exempted in accordance with Section 7.5.2.C, Exemptions, the standards in this section shall 
apply to all new development and redevelopment in the County.  
2. Redevelopment conducted after February 4, 2019 shall comply with the standards in this section, to the 
maximum extent practicable, and shall provide its pro rata share of open space set-aside.  

B. Conservation Subdivisions  
Open space set-asides associated with a conservation subdivision shall be subject to the standards in Section 6.5, 
Conservation Subdivision, in addition to these standards. In the event of a conflict, the standards in Section 6.5, 
Conservation Subdivision, shall control.  
C. Exemptions  
The following forms of development shall be exempted from the standards in this section:  

1. Development of an individual single-family dwelling (including manufactured homes) on lots platted prior 
to February 4, 2019;  
2. Minor Subdivisions comprised solely of six or fewer lots where all lots are intended for single-family 
detached residential dwellings; and  
3. Development located within the CP, LI, and HI districts. 

 
  

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
_O

rd
in

an
ce

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t2
02

3_
08

_0
7 

(0
02

) 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



5.1.2. COMMERCIAL DESIGN STANDARDS 

D. Design Requirements 
3. Building Material Standards  

a. Allowable Materials 
 1. The predominant exterior building materials for nonresidential development shall be of high quality, 

and may include:  
 A. Brick;  
 B. Rock, stone, or tinted and textured concrete masonry units;  
 C. Natural, decay-resistant, high quality exterior wood siding, shingles, or clapboards;  
 D. Cementitious siding (sheet or plank);  
 E. High-quality, architectural metal (stainless steel, copper, brushed nickel, brass, but 

excluding corrugated metal siding), subject to approval by the Planning Board or the Board 
of Commissioners; and 

 F. Transparent glass windows and doors.  
 

 2. Suggested pitched roof materials include asphalt shingles, standing seam metal, slate, or similar 
materials.  

 3. Artificial materials which closely resemble these materials shall also be allowed, but are subject to 
approval by the UDO Administrator Board of Commissioners or the Planning Board.  

 
 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 7th day of August, 

2023. 

 

 

COUNTY OF CAMDEN     ATTEST 

 

              

Tiffney White, Chair     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

        
 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
_O

rd
in

an
ce

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

t2
02

3_
08

_0
7 

(0
02

) 
 (

P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Report (PDF) 

 

6.A

Packet Pg. 12



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Charles Jones, 

 Public Works 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Well Site 4 Bids and Contract Award 

 

Attachments: WELL 4 BID AGENDA ITEM (1) (DOCM) 

202110 Camden Well #4 Bid Award 

Recommendations (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 20



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  ADMINISTRATION  

TIFFNEY WHITE ERIN BURKE
Chair County Manager

ROSS B. MUNRO KAREN M. DAVIS
Vice Chair Clerk to the Board

RANDY KRAINIAK
SISSY AYDLETT JOHN S. MORRISON
TROY LEARY County Attorney

P. O. Box 190 w 330 East Hwy 158 w Camden, NC, 27921 w Phone (252) 338-6363  w Fax (252) 331-7831
www.camdencountync.gov

Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

New Business

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023

Submitted by: Chuck Jones
Public Works

Item Title Well site 4 Bids and Contract Award

Attachments Engineer’s recommendation letter
Bid tabulation

Summary

The bid solicitation for the development of Well Site 4 was issued in two parts.  The first contract (contract-1)
was for drilling of the well, including testing and development.  The second contract (contract-2) was for the 
installation of the raw water transmission line.  When the bid was first advertised, there were not enough
submissions to open.  The project was re-advertised and the bids were opened.  There were three for contract-2 
and one for contract-1.  

Since there was still only one bid for contract-1, it would be in the best interest of the county to put it back out 
for bid.  This would allow any other bidders to submit and hopefully lower the cost.  

The original appropriation for this project was $1,000,000.00.  The higher than expected bids require that all 
scenarios are considered to allow this project to proceed with the lowest cost incurred.

Staff recommends awarding the bid for contract-2 to the apparent low bidder.

Staff recommends rejecting the single bid for contract-1 and re-advertising.

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

E
L

L
 4

 B
ID

 A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 (

1)
  (

W
el

l S
it

e 
4 

B
id

s 
an

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
A

w
ar

d
)



6.B.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

0 
C

am
d

en
 W

el
l #

4 
B

id
 A

w
ar

d
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 (
W

el
l S

it
e 

4 
B

id
s 

an
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
w

ar
d

)



6.B.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

0 
C

am
d

en
 W

el
l #

4 
B

id
 A

w
ar

d
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 (
W

el
l S

it
e 

4 
B

id
s 

an
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
w

ar
d

)



Item # Item Description Qty Units Unit Price Cost

1 4" Test Well Installation - Pilot Hole, Geophysical Logs, 
Casing, Screen, Develop, Sample, Pump & Recovery Test 1 LS 130,766.00$        130,766.00$          

2 Pilot Hole; Driller's Log and Formation Samples 620 LF 87.00$                 53,940.00$            

3 Gamma and Electric Logs 620 LF 5.00$                   3,100.00$              

4 20" Pit Casing Steel Pipe (Minimum Thickness 0.375) 50 LF 400.00$               20,000.00$            

5 10" Production Well Casing, SDR 17 Certa-Lok 340 LF 250.00$               85,000.00$            

6 8" Production Well Casing, Sch 20 304 Stainless Steel 210 LF 300.00$               63,000.00$            

7 8" Production Well Screen, 316 Stainless Steel 50 LF 500.00$               25,000.00$            

8 Production Well Dev. & Water Quality Sampling 1 LS 40,000.00$          40,000.00$            

9 Aquifer Pump Test (24 hour) 1 LS 6,000.00$            6,000.00$              

10 Aquifer Recovery Test (2 hour) 1 LS 1,000.00$            1,000.00$              

11 Well #4 Site Grading & Fill Material (Approx. 180 CY) 1 LS 33,000.00$          33,000.00$            

12 Silt Fence 350 LF 10.00$                 3,500.00$              

13 Erosion Control, Seeding and Mulching 1 LS 10,500.00$          10,500.00$            

14 Production Well Testing for Public Water Supply Approvals 1 LS 9,000.00$            9,000.00$              

15
Provide and Install the production well pump, pump pedestal,
stainless steel well elbow, start-up and testing of the well
pump

1 LS 36,900.00$          36,900.00$            

16 Mobilization and Bonding (3% maximum) 1 LS 16,000.00$          16,000.00$            

536,706$               Total Contract 1 Bid Total:

Camden County - Seymour Road Raw Water Well #4
 Contract 1 - Production Well #4 & Testing (Rev. - Addendum #2)

A. C. SCHULTES OF 
CAROLINA, INC.

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

0 
C

am
d

en
 W

el
l #

4 
B

id
 A

w
ar

d
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 (
W

el
l S

it
e 

4 
B

id
s 

an
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
w

ar
d

)



Item # Item Description Qty Units Unit Price Cost Unit Price Cost Unit Price Cost

1 Well #4 Pump Controls & Electrical 1 LS 48,500.00$     48,500.00$       83,150.00$     83,150.00$       50,000.00$    50,000.00$          

2 Well #4 Pre-Fabricated Fiberglass Enclosure 1 LS 25,500.00$     25,500.00$       25,550.00$     25,550.00$       45,500.00$    45,500.00$          

3 Well #4 Site Piping, Meter, Valves, Bends, etc., to 
6x12 Tee

1 LS 95,000.00$     95,000.00$       65,980.00$     65,980.00$       123,000.00$  123,000.00$        

4 Well #4 Site Electrical 1 LS 105,000.00$   105,000.00$     104,000.00$   104,000.00$     182,400.00$  182,400.00$        

5 Well #4 Site Concrete Pads 1 LS 10,000.00$     10,000.00$       9,100.00$       9,100.00$         37,000.00$    37,000.00$          

6 Well #4 SCADA & RTU Allowance 1 LS 50,000.00$     50,000.00$       50,000.00$     50,000.00$       50,000.00$    50,000.00$          

7 Well #4 SCADA & RTU Package Installation 
(Includes Antenna Pole, Conduit and Wiring)

1 LS 10,000.00$     10,000.00$       7,500.00$       7,500.00$         30,300.00$    30,300.00$          

8 Well #4 Site Grading 1 LS 11,500.00$     11,500.00$       19,970.00$     19,970.00$       27,500.00$    27,500.00$          

9 Security Fence and Gates 1 LS 19,500.00$     19,500.00$       20,000.00$     20,000.00$       23,500.00$    23,500.00$          

10 ABC Gravel Drive, 12 ft. wide, to Seymour Road 1 LS 13,500.00$     13,500.00$       16,000.00$     16,000.00$       23,000.00$    23,000.00$          

11 12" PVC SDR 21 Raw Water Main (Includes all 
necessary #57 Stone, bends & fittings) 3,417 LF $97 331,449.00$     $99 338,283.00$     $157 536,469.00$        

12 12" DIP Raw Water Main Class 350 (Includes all 
necessary #57 stone, bends & fittings) 128 LF $150 19,200.00$       $300 38,400.00$       $257 32,896.00$          

13 14" SDR11 HDPE IPS Direction Drill (Includes all 
necessary #57 stone, bends & fittings) 227 LF $250 56,750.00$       $220 49,940.00$       $312 70,824.00$          

14 12" Gate Valve, Valve Box and Concrete Collar 4 EA 5,850.00$       23,400.00$       6,300.00$       25,200.00$       6,500.00$      26,000.00$          

15 12" Class III RCP, Drainage Pipe, (Includes all 
necessary #57 Stone bedding) 20 LF 80.00$            1,600.00$         80.00$            1,600.00$         220.00$         4,400.00$            

16 15" Class III RCP, Drainage Pipe, (Includes all 
necessary #57 Stone bedding) 466 LF 85.00$            39,610.00$       82.00$            38,212.00$       230.00$         107,180.00$        

17 18" Class III RCP, Drainage Pipe, (Includes all 
necessary #57 Stone bedding) 94 LF 120.00$          11,280.00$       115.00$          10,810.00$       263.00$         24,722.00$          

18 NCDOT Asphalt Cut & Replace (Per Detail) 10 SY 175.00$          1,750.00$         300.00$          3,000.00$         260.00$         2,600.00$            

19 Asphalt Driveway Cut & Replace (Per Detail) 12 SY 100.00$          1,200.00$         75.00$            900.00$            240.00$         2,880.00$            

20 Concrete Driveway Cut & Replace (Per Detail) 110 SY 150.00$          16,500.00$       115.00$          12,650.00$       255.00$         28,050.00$          

21 Erosion Control, Seeding and Mulching 1 LS 10,000.00$     10,000.00$       9,000.00$       9,000.00$         10,000.00$    10,000.00$          

22 Traffic Control Per NCDOT Specifications 1 LS 12,500.00$     12,500.00$       39,000.00$     39,000.00$       11,500.00$    11,500.00$          

23 Mobilization and Bonding (3% maximum) 1 LS 20,000.00$     20,000.00$       29,500.00$     29,500.00$       41,000.00$    41,000.00$          

933,739.00$     997,745.00$     1,490,721.00$     Total Contract 2 Bid Total:

ENVIRO-TECH UNLIMITED 
CONSTRUCTION 

SERVICES,

EASTERN CAROLINA 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. HERRING-RIVENBARK, INC.

Camden County - Seymour Road Raw Water Well #4
Contract 2 - Well #4 Pump, Piping, Controls & Raw Water Main (Rev. - Addendum #2)

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
11

0 
C

am
d

en
 W

el
l #

4 
B

id
 A

w
ar

d
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 (
W

el
l S

it
e 

4 
B

id
s 

an
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
w

ar
d

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Library Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of County Librarian Kim Perry that Sandra Duckwall be reappointed to the 

Library Board for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

7.A

Packet Pg. 26



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_070323 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 27



1 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

Minutes 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held at 7:00 PM on July 3, 2023 in the 

boardroom of the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chair Ross Munro, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy Leary.  Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin 

Burke, Clerk to the Board Karen Davis. 

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Vice Chair Ross Munro gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Commissioner Leary requested that the agenda be amended to discuss reopening the Swap and Shop areas at the 

convenience sites – added as item 11.A.    

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3. PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Employee Recognition  

• Austin Brown, County Extension Director, was recognized for his recent promotion to Extension 

Agent for the NC Cooperative Extension Office.   

• Tara Ferguson with the Dismal Swamp Welcome Center was recognized for completion of her 

second year with the Southeastern Tourism Society (STS) Marketing College at Mercer University 

in Macon, Georgia.  The STS Marketing College is a three-year program and upon completion, 

students receive Travel Marketing Professional Certification.   

 

ITEM 4. PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

None. 

 

 

ITEM 5. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



2 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

 
 

 
 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



3 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 

 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



4 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

30 Oldest Unpaid - Real 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Tax Report as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

  

B. Personnel Policy Updates – Erin Burke 

 

       

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



5 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

  
 

Motion to approve the Personnel Policy updates as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

ITEM 6. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. NCACC Annual Conference Voting Delegate 

 

The 116th Business Session of the NCACC will take place during its Annual Conference scheduled for August 24th-

August 26th.  Each county will be entitled to one vote on items that come before the membership.  In order to 

facilitate the voting process, each county is to designate one voting delegate (and also may appoint one alternate).   

 

Motion to appoint Vice Chair Ross Munro as the voting delegate for the NCACC Annual Conference. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Motion to appoint Chair Tiffney White as the alternate voting delegate for the NCACC Annual Conference.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

Chair White recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



6 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

New Business 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



7 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



8 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

   
 

Mr. Jones added that the company contracted to provide meter reading services will no longer be providing that 

service.  It will be necessary to hire a County part-time meter reader.   

 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Chair White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 7.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – Incorporated herein by reference. 

• May 16, 2023 

• June 5, 2023 

• June 12, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



9 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

B. Budget Amendment 

 

 
 

C. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



10 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



11 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

 
 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Name Reason Amount 

Christopher Vector Salvatore Turned in plates 120.92 

 

 

E. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



12 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

G. Set Public Hearing – Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances 

 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



13 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

   
 

   
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



14 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

ITEM 8.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Erin Burke included the following in her report: 

• Meetings Attended: 

▪ Jail Board 

▪ Board of Commissioners / Board of Education Joint Meeting 

▪ Treasure Point Rural Education Center Kickoff Meeting 

▪ New Camden County High School Kickoff Meeting 

▪ Heritage Festival Canning Contest Meeting 

• Librarian Interviews 

• New School Superintendent Meet and Greet 

• Lease Discussion with Success Academy 

• Met with McAdams Engineers 

• Spectrum Internet Virtual Meeting 

• Virginia Tillett Community Center Meeting 

• EMS Director Position Posting  

 

ITEM 9.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Chair White announced the Shred-It event to take place August 25th, 10 AM to 1 PM at the Camden Senior Center. 

 

 

ITEM 10. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Fire Prevention Report 

 

 

ITEM 11. OTHER MATTERS          

 

A. Swap and Shop Sites 

 

Commissioner Leary stated that he had received numerous requests to reopen the Swap and Shop areas at the 

convenience sites. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak spoke in favor of reopening the Swap and Shop areas as he prefers items that are still of use 

to not be discarded.   

 

County Manager Burke explained that the Swap and Shop areas previously had to be cleaned out regularly at the 

convenience centers due to items discarded in the ‘swap areas’ that belonged in the trash bins.  Adjacent counties 

have also closed convenience center swap areas due to similar issues.  Community and online yard sales have 

become a more useful approach to discarding items of value and use.   

 

Public Works Director Chuck Jones stated that the swap areas had been abused and items were regularly left that did 

not belong in the swap area.  The cleanup of these require staff to mobilize tractors and other equipment necessary to 

take trash and other discarded bulk items out of the swap areas to be placed in the appropriate bins.  The staff at the 

convenience sites are not County employees and cannot hold citizens accountable for what is placed in the bins.   

 

Motion to reopen the Swap and Shop areas of the convenience sites. 

RESULT: FAILED [2-3] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary 

NOES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett  

 

The Clerk requested a poll of the Board: 

Chair White – no 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



15 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 3, 2023 

Vice Chair Munro – no 

Commissioner Aydlett – no 

Commissioner Krainiak – aye 

Commissioner Leary – aye 

 

ITEM 12. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair White adjourned the meeting at 7:27 PM. 

 

 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW 

 

Chair White reconvened the Board of Equalization and Review.   

 

There being no cases to come before the Board, Chair White adjourned the meeting. 

 

 

 

       

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
03

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: 23-24 BA 002 Aydlett Trustee Account (DOC) 

23-24 BA 003 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Grant Funding

 (DOC) 

23-24 BA 004 Sentara - Community Park Grant

 (DOC) 

23-24 BA 005 Shred Grant (DOC) 

23-24 BA 006 ABC Funds to Sheriff's Department

 (DOC) 

23-24 BA 007 Sentara Grant monies to Sheriff's 

Department (DOC) 

23-24 BA 008 Donations to Sheriff's Department

 (DOC) 

23-24 BA 009 Smalls Trustee Account (DOC) 

23-24 BA 010 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Commission 

Property Sold (DOC) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 43



                                                       2023-24-BA002 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

51330800-437350 TRUSTEE ACCOUNT   $18,588 

   

Expenses  

518000-537500         TRUSTEE ACCOUNT      18,588 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that we will be receiving for a new 

trustee.       

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
02

 A
yd

le
tt

 T
ru

st
ee

 A
cc

o
u

n
t 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2023-24-BA003 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

40380530-433500 MISCELLANEOUS   $3,353.66 

   

Expenses  

405300-574400        GRANT PURCHASES     3,353.66 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received through a grant 

for the Fire Department to acquire AED’s.        

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
03

 S
h

ilo
h

 C
o

u
rt

h
o

u
se

 F
ir

e 
G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2023-24-BA004 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10360612-402001 PRIVATE DONATIONS  $10,000 

   

Expenses  

106120-533100        GRANT PURCHASES     10,000 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received through a grant 

for the Community Park.        

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.c

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
04

 S
en

ta
ra

 -
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
P

ar
k 

G
ra

n
t 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2023-24-BA005 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10360621-434868 STATE GRANT    $2,800 

   

Expenses  

106210-533100        GRANT PURCHASES     2,800 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received through a grant 

for the Senior Center to do a Shred Event.        

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.d

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
05

 S
h

re
d

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2023-24-BA006 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

1030510-433500 MISCELLANEOUS   $7,733.31 

   

Expenses  

105100-557000        MISCELLANEOUS     7,733.31 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received from the ABC 

Store to the Sheriff’s Department.         

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.e

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
06

 A
B

C
 F

u
n

d
s 

to
 S

h
er

if
f's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2023-24-BA007 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10360510-434898 Grant Revenues     $10,000 

   

Expenses  

105100-574400        Grant Purchases      10,000 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received from Grant 

monies received for the Sheriff’s Department.         

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.f

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
07

 S
en

ta
ra

 G
ra

n
t 

m
o

n
ie

s 
to

 S
h

er
if

f's
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
 (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2023-24-BA008 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10385510-402001 Private Donations   $1,210 

   

Expenses  

105100-551400        Sheriff’s Fund Raisers     1,210 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were received from donations  

received for the Sheriff’s Department.         

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.g

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
08

 D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
to

 S
h

er
if

f's
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
 (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2023-24-BA009 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

51330800-437960 TRUSTEE ACCOUNT   $11,856 

   

Expenses  

518000-537960         TRUSTEE ACCOUNT      11,856 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that we will be receiving for a  

trustee.       

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.h

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
09

 S
m

al
ls

 T
ru

st
ee

 A
cc

o
u

n
t 

 (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2023-24-BA010 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

40380530-433500 Miscellaneous    $10,000 

   

Expenses  

405300-523000         Non-Capitalized Equipment    10,000 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds to appropriate monies received in 

the equipment line for Shiloh Courthouse Fire Commission.        

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 7th day of August, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

8.B.i

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
10

 S
h

ilo
h

 C
o

u
rt

h
o

u
se

 F
ir

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
o

ld
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 53



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 89



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: July, 2023 Refunds Over $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 91



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

u
ly

, 2
02

3 
R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

 (
R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 93



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 June, 2023 (PDF) 

Vehicle Refunds Over $100_July (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 95



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

Ju
n

e,
 2

02
3 

 (
V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



8.G.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

_J
u

ly
  (

V
eh

ic
le

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority Bylaws Update 

 

Attachments: TDA Bylaws Rev. July 2023 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

The Tourism Development Authority voted at its July 18, 2023 meeting to conduct its meetings 

as outlined in the UNC School of Government publication, Suggested Procedural Rules for 

Local Appointed Boards, which is an accepted modified version of Robert's Rules of Order.  The 

Board of Commissioners will consider approval of the revised TDA Bylaws.   

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

8.H

Packet Pg. 98



 
BYLAWS 

 
FOR THE 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY TOURISM 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                  
                                                                                                 Revised 7-20-23 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 B
yl

aw
s 

R
ev

. J
u

ly
 2

02
3 

 (
T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 B
yl

aw
s 

U
p

d
at

e)



 

 

BYLAWS 
FOR 

CAMDEN COUNTY TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

(TDA) 
 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners, per Resolution 2004-10-02 dated October 18, 2004, 

created a Tourism Development Authority.   

 

The following bylaws adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners are for the purpose 

of the Camden County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) to follow when conducting public 

business: 

 

1. Regular Meetings 

 

The TDA shall hold a quarterly meeting on the second Tuesday of the first month in each 

quarter (Jan. April, July, Oct.). Exceptions may occur if regular meeting dates fall on a 

legal holiday. The meeting shall be held on the next business day, with acceptance of TDA 

majority.  Meetings shall be held at the Camden Public Library, and shall begin at 9:30 

AM, unless otherwise stated. 

 

2. Special Meetings 

 

The Chair, or a majority of the members of the TDA, may at any time call a special meeting 

of the Camden TDA by signing a written notice stating the time and place of the meeting 

and the subjects to be considered.  If a majority of the members call a special meeting, 

members who call the meeting shall provide notice to the TDA Chair at least 48 hours 

before the meeting.  The TDA Chair shall notify all members and local media at least 48 

hours before the meeting.  Only those items of business specified in the notice may be 

transacted at a special meeting, unless all members are present or absentees have signed a 

written waiver. 

 

If a special meeting is called to deal with an emergency, the notice requirements of this 

rule do not apply.  However, the person or persons who call an emergency special meeting 

shall take reasonable action to inform the other members and the public of the meeting.  

Only business connected with the emergency may be discussed at the meeting. 

 

3. Organizational Meeting 

 

On the second Tuesday in October following the end of the fiscal year in which authority 

members are appointed, the TDA shall meet at the regular meeting time and place.  The 

newly elected members of the TDA shall take and subscribe the oath of office as the first 

order of business.  The Secretary to the TDA shall preside until a new Chair is appointed 

by the Camden County Board of Commissioners.  Following the appointment of a Chair, 

the TDA shall elect a Vice-Chair from among its members. 

 

 

 

 

 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 B
yl

aw
s 

R
ev

. J
u

ly
 2

02
3 

 (
T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 B
yl

aw
s 

U
p

d
at

e)



 

4. Agenda 

 

The TDA Chair shall prepare the agenda for the meeting.  A request to have an item of 

business placed on the agenda must be received at least three working days before the 

meeting.  Any TDA member may, by a timely request, have an item placed on the agenda. 

 

The agenda shall include, for each item of business placed on it, as much background 

information on the subject as is available and feasible to reproduce, which shall be attached 

to the agenda.  A copy of the agenda and attached materials shall be available for public 

inspection as soon as they are completed.  Each TDA member shall receive a copy of the 

agenda.   

 

5. Public Address to the Authority 

 

Any individual or group who wishes to address the TDA shall make a request to be on the 

agenda to the TDA Chair at least three working days prior to the meeting.   

 

6. Order of Business 

 

Items shall be placed on the agenda according to the "Order of Business."  The Order of 

Business for each regular meeting shall be as follows: 

 

1. Call to order 

2. Approval of minutes 

3. Public comments 

 4. Discussion/adjustment of agenda 

 5. Public Hearing 

 6. Old Business 

 7. New Business 

 8. Committee Reports and Proposals 

 10. Chair’s Report 

 11. Adjournment 

 

 However, by general consent of the TDA, items may be considered out of order. 

 

7. Powers of the Presiding Officer 

 

The Chair shall preside at meetings of the TDA.  A member must be recognized by the 

Chair in order to address the TDA.  The Chair shall have the following powers: 

 

1. To rule motions in or out of order including the right to rule out of order any motion 

patently offered for obstructive or dilatory purposes; 

2. To determine whether a speaker has gone beyond reasonable standards of courtesy 

in his remarks and to entertain and rule on objections from other members on this 

ground; 

3. To entertain and answer questions of parliamentary law or procedure; 

4. To call a brief recess at any time; 

5. To adjourn in an emergency. 

 

 

 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 B
yl

aw
s 

R
ev

. J
u

ly
 2

02
3 

 (
T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 B
yl

aw
s 

U
p

d
at

e)



 

8.  Rules of Procedure 

 

The Tourism Development Authority, at its July 18, 2023 meeting, voted to conduct its 

meetings as outlined in the UNC School of Government publication, Suggested Procedural 

Rules for Local Appointed Boards, which is an accepted modified version of Robert’s 

Rules of Order.   

 

9. Adoption of the TDA Budget and Authorization of Expenditures 

 

The TDA shall propose and submit a budget to the County Manager’s Office according to 

the budget schedule adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners.  The TDA 

may make no single expenditure in excess of $1,000 without the expressed permission of 

the Camden County Board of Commissioners given in open session of the Board of 

Commissioners.   

 

10. Quorum 

 

A majority of the membership of the Tourism Development Authority shall constitute a 

quorum.  The number required for a quorum shall not be affected by vacancies.  If a 

member has withdrawn from a meeting without being excused by majority vote of the 

remaining members present, he shall be counted as present for the purposes of determining 

whether a quorum is present.   

 

11. Minutes 

  

Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the TDA and a copy shall be provided to the Board 

of Commissioners. 

 

 

Approved and adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners this the 7th day of August, 

2023.  

 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

Tiffney White, Chair     Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 B
yl

aw
s 

R
ev

. J
u

ly
 2

02
3 

 (
T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 B
yl

aw
s 

U
p

d
at

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block 

Grant 

 

Attachments: Agreement for Home & Community Care Block 

Grant for Older Adults

 (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

Annual HCCB Grant administered through Albemarle Commission, benefiting older adults in 

Camden; provides transportation, home health services and nutrition programs. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

8.I

Packet Pg. 103



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
A

n
n

u
al

 A
g

re
em

en
t



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.J 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   DHHS Request - Operation Santa Claus 

 

Attachments: Operation Santa Claus (PDF) 

 
Summary: 

See attached letter of request from NC Department of Health and Human Services in regard to 

2023 Operation Santa Claus.   

Recommendation: 

Approval of $100 toward the project.   

8.J

Packet Pg. 118



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

p
er

at
io

n
 S

an
ta

 C
la

u
s 

 (
D

H
H

S
 R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
20

23
 O

p
er

at
io

n
 S

an
ta

 C
la

u
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 120



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: 23-06 (DOCX) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 123



Camden County Public Library 

June 2023 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 1,654 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 4,486 

Cloud Library Check Out (ebooks & audiobooks) 128 (9.9% decrease from 6/22) 

Computer/ Wireless Use 210/143 

Questions Answered 218 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 13/278 

Teen Program/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 2/18 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 19/38 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 3/18 

Days/Hours Open 23/187 

# Items in Collection 21,238 

Library Card Holders 2,568 

 
Comparison by Year 

2021-2023 

  
           

**The Library was closed 6/1-6/22 while moving to our new location. During this closure the facility was 

closed to the public and all services suspended. 
 

1,166

860

1,654

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2021 JUNE 2022 JUNE 2023 JUNE

Attendance

3,357
3,176

4,486

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

2021 JUNE 2022 JUNE 2023 JUNE

Circulation

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
06

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NC Forest Service Annual Report 

 

Attachments: NC Forest Service Annual Report (PDF) 

 

11.C

Packet Pg. 125



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven W. Troxler 
Commissioner 

 
 

 Scott Bissette 
Assistant Commissioner 

 

 

 
1616 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1616 

Phone: (919) 857-4801 • FAX: (919) 857-4802 • www.ncforestservice.gov 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

North Carolina Department of Agriculture 
and Consumer Services 

N.C. Forest Service  

July 10, 2023 
 

 
Dear Camden County Commissioners and County Manager Erin Burke: 
 
 
This letter highlights the North Carolina Forest Service’s annual accomplishments for Camden County in fiscal 
year July 2022 - June 2023.  The NCFS is responsible for the protection and development of all private and state 
woodlands in the county per general statutes.  Camden County’s forestland area consists of 80,177 acres as listed in 
the 2015 NCFIA survey.  Of these acres, only 49,494 are nonindustrial private that we have jurisdiction over.  At 
this time, I would like to take the opportunity to inform you of our program areas and the accomplishments we 
made in each area.  My Assistant County Ranger position is currently vacant, and we are working hard to fill that 
position.  Our Forest Fire Equipment Operator position has been staffed since May by Keith Norman and he is 
displaying strong initiative beginning his training progression. 
 
Fire Control 
 
We had a large volume of fire response calls this year.  We responded to 37 calls with 22 of those being wildfires 
resulting in 7 warning tickets and 1 citation being issued.  Other calls were false alarms and legal or illegal control 
burns.  I was dispatched to Western NC for initial attack response for fires back in October and went to the Croatan 
National Forest Great Lakes Fire as Strike Team Leader outside New Bern NC recently in May.  We had 496 
Burning Permits written by local agents and acquired by landowners online.  We have 3 Volunteer Fire 
Departments in the county, which continue to be a tremendous asset to us in wildfire suppression.  Their quick 
initial attack with us minimizes fire damage and keeps fires small.   
 
Forest Management 
 
With help from our District Office staff in Elizabeth City; we prepared 28 management plans for Camden 
landowners consisting of 990 acres.  These plans help landowners meet financial and personal objectives for their 
timberland.  These plans address timber resources, wildlife, aesthetics, water quality, soil protection, and/or 
recreation opportunities.  Using information in their management plans, Camden landowners contracted with tree 
planters for a total of 159 acres of harvested woodland that was replanted.  We are also responsible for conducting 
survival checks of last year planting projects and land measurement of all projects funded with state funds using 
global positioning system instruments.  We also collected 204 lbs. of seed to support our State Nursery in 
Goldsboro and we conducted 2 hazard reduction burns totaling 8 acres for our landowners.  
 
Water Quality Protection 
 
We are also committed to randomly check on forestry logging operations.  All forestry activities must adhere to 
Forest Practice Guidelines and Best Management Practices. These laws and regulations protect water quality and 
enable us to utilize forest resources in a sustainable manner.   We conducted 18 inspections and re-inspections on 
loggers for 220 acres of forest harvesting activities in the county. 
 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

)

http://www.ncforest/


 
 
 
Information and Education 
 
These programs are a vital part of our organization and they educate the public in forestry and the prevention of 
wildfires.  We conducted 6 programs in the county with other time spent on attending various VFD meetings. 
 
Urban Assistance and Pest Control 
 
We provide Camden citizens with advice and support on shade trees, windbreaks, and insect & disease control.  
Urban assistance will continue to be a priority as the population increases and more land is developed.  In an effort 
to protect urban and forested areas, each year we conduct aerial and ground surveys for forest pest outbreaks.  We 
continually work with cooperative agencies; NCSU Extension office for shade tree assistance and the North 
Carolina Department of Agriculture to monitor forest pest movements. 
 
Other Services 
 
We are also involved in overall emergency response in Camden County, the State of North Carolina, and the 
Southeast Compact.  We stand ready for natural disaster recovery efforts such as hurricanes, floods, tornadoes, and 
ice storms.  
 
Summary 
 
I feel we had a very successful year in all program areas especially with position changes. I really appreciate the 
support of this board of commissioners and our other cooperators in helping us achieve this success. If you need 
any assistance or have any questions or concerns; please feel free to contact me at 336-4332. 
 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

         
 
 

Steve Sutton 
Camden County Ranger 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.D 

Meeting Date:   August 07, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   New High School Progress Report 

 

Attachments: CAMHS 20230801 Project Status Report August

 (PDF) 

 

11.D

Packet Pg. 128



2400 Crownpoint Executive Dr. / Charlotte, NC  28227
Phone 704-841-7299

NEW 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

HIGH SCHOOL

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 1 of 6

M. B. Kahn has prepared this Monthly Project Status Report to provide the Camden County Board of Education and
Board of Commissioners an update regarding the New Camden County High School project. This report is intended
to show the progress made on the project to date and prepare you for the “next steps” as we continue moving
forward.

PROJECT STAKEHOLDERS:

Camden County Board of Commissioners Camden County Board of Education
Tiffney White, Chair Dr. Jason Banks, Chair
Ross Munro, Vice Chair Chris Purcell, Vice Chair
Sissy Aydlett, Commissioner Kevin Heath, Board Member
Randy Krainiak, Commissioner Magen O’Neal, Board Member
Troy Leary, Commissioner Christian Overton, Board Member

Camden County Manager Camden County Schools Superintendent
Erin Burke, County Manager Dr. Linda Carr, Superintendent

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT STATUS SUMMARY:

Over the course of recent months, the Design-Build team, M. B. Kahn and Moseley Architects, received direction
from the Board of Education and Board of Commissioners to proceed with the two-story design approach on the
Hwy. 343 site with a total project budget of $80,000,000. This new design will accommodate 800 students.

The kick-off steering committee meeting was held on June 27, 2023. The steering committee is made up of
representatives from the Board of Commissioners, Board of Education, and County and District staff. During this
meeting, the steering committee and Design-Build team reviewed and discussed the project scope, budget, funding,
property due diligence, timeline, communication procedures, and more. The next steering committee meeting will
be held on Wednesday, August 9, 2023 at 3:00pm (virtual).

Programming meetings were conducted on July 24th and 25th, 2023. During these meetings, the Design-Build team
met with District leadership and faculty to review the changes made during the preparation of the two-story
conceptual design and determine if any adjustments needed to be made to accommodate the educational program.
Agreed upon adjustments will be incorporated into the design documents.

The County CFO and Design-Build team met with the County’s financial advisor and USDA representative to discuss
beginning the loan application process again. Documents needing updates were discussed and are currently being

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 2 of 6

prepared. The Phase 1 ESA has been updated by Timmons Group, and the final report was submitted to USDA for
review. The Environmental Assessment will require some additional updates and Terracon is reviewing and
preparing a proposal for this effort. The Design-Build team is expecting this proposal within the next week or two
and once received, it will be provided to the County and District along with an expected timeline for these updates.

A new project website has been created to reflect current project parameters and will continue to be monitored and
updated throughout the project. QR cards were provided to both the County and District for ease of distribution.
Construction costs are continuously being monitored and periodic estimates (per the management schedule) will be
completed to reflect current market conditions.

Over the next month, the team will continue with the design phase and with preparing necessary documentation
for the USDA loan.

____________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT MILESTONES:

Programming and Planning 100%

· Please refer to the project website for the project history and timeline

Design Phase 35%
· Conceptual / Schematic Design 100%
· Design Development 30%

o Progress Estimate – anticipated in October 2023
· Construction Documents 0%

o 90% Estimate – anticipated in March 2024

Procurement 0%

Construction Phase ____________ 0%

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT FINANCIAL STATUS:

Funding Source:
NC NBPSCF

Grant USDA Loan Total Project

Budget: $50,000,000 $30,000,000 $80,000,000

Billed to Date: $3,205,615 $0.00 $3,205,615

Remaining Budget: $46,794,385 $30,000,000 $76,794,385

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 3 of 6

NEXT STEPS:

· Continue the design development phase
· Steering committee meeting on Wednesday, August 9, 2023 at 3:00pm (virtual).
· Complete the Environmental Assessment (EA) Updates
· Continue preparing and submitting documentation for the USDA loan
· Continue developing procurement documents and information

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

PROJECT PHOTOS:

Project Website: https://www.cchs-project.com/

Renderings and Layouts (additional renderings can be found on the project website):

Figure 1: Conceptual Site Plan

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)

https://www.cchs-project.com/


 PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 4 of 6

Figure 2: Conceptual Floor Plan - 1st Floor

Figure 3: Conceptual Floor Plan - 2nd Floor

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 5 of 6

Figure 4: Interior Renderings - CTE Lab

Figure 5: Interior Renderings - Extended Learning Area

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



PROJECT STATUS REPORT : AUGUST 2023
New Camden County High School

Camden County, NC

Page 6 of 6

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Management Schedule

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Preconstruction 1146 days Fri 4/10/20 Mon 8/26/24
2 Design Build Contract Execution 1 day Fri 4/10/20 Fri 4/10/20
3 Early Design Phase (SD & DD) 347 days Mon 4/13/20 Fri 8/6/21
4 Site Selection 300 days Mon 4/5/21 Mon 5/23/22
5 Scope Addition/Selection 200 days Tue 4/26/22 Mon 1/30/23
6 Grant Award Announcements 0 days Tue 4/26/22 Tue 4/26/22
7 Project Paused for Funding and Site Evaluations295 days Tue 4/26/22 Mon 6/12/23
8 Two-Story Design Phase 214 days Tue 6/13/23 Fri 4/5/24
9 Progress Estimate 10 days Tue 9/26/23 Mon 10/9/23
10 90% Estimate 10 days Mon 2/26/24 Fri 3/8/24
11 Bidding / GMP 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
12 BOE & BOC Approval - GMP 1 day Mon 6/3/24 Mon 6/3/24
13 LGC Approval GMP 40 days Tue 6/4/24 Mon 7/29/24
14 USDA Approval - GMP 20 days Tue 7/30/24 Mon 8/26/24
24 Permitting 175 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 12/6/24
25 Camden County Site Plan Approval 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
26 NCDEQ Erosion Control Permit Review 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
27 NCDEQ Stormwater Permit Review 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
28 NCDOT Three Party Encroachment Agreement 65 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 12/6/24
29 NCDEQ Sewer Permit Review 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
30 NCPWS Water Permit Review 40 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 5/31/24
31 NCDOT Driveway Permit Review 60 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 6/28/24
32 NCDOT Two Part Encroachment Agreement 60 days Mon 4/8/24 Fri 6/28/24
33 Final Building Permit Review 30 days Mon 6/3/24 Fri 7/12/24
15 Construction Phase 524 days Tue 8/27/24 Fri 8/28/26
16 Site Preparation 80 days Tue 8/27/24 Mon 12/16/24
17 Foundations/Building Pad 140 days Tue 12/17/24 Mon 6/30/25
18 Structural 120 days Tue 3/11/25 Mon 8/25/25
19 Exterior Construction 100 days Tue 7/1/25 Mon 11/17/25
20 Interior Construction/Finishes 200 days Tue 10/21/25 Mon 7/27/26
21 Substantial Completion/Punchlist 24 days Tue 7/28/26 Fri 8/28/26
22 Owner Move-In 15 days Mon 8/10/26 Fri 8/28/26
23 Final Occupancy 0 days Fri 8/28/26 Fri 8/28/26

6/3

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
2024 2025 2026

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: Camden County High
School and Early College
Date: Thu 6/22/23

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

H
S

 2
02

30
80

1 
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s 
R

ep
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

  (
N

ew
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Closed Session - Discuss personnel and consult with the County Attorney.
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Bill Blake, Old Trap Methodist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Presentations
	A. Employee Recognition
	Printout: Employee Recognition


	4. Public Comments
	5. Public Hearings
	A. Public Hearing - Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances
	Printout: Public Hearing - Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances
	a. AgendaSummary_TextAmendmentPH_2023_08_07
	b. PH_Ordinance_TextAmendment2023_08_07 (002)


	6. New Business
	A. Tax Report
	Printout: Tax Report
	a. Tax Report

	B. Well Site 4 Bids and Contract Award
	Printout: Well Site 4 Bids and Contract Award
	a. WELL 4 BID AGENDA ITEM (1)
	b. 202110 Camden Well #4 Bid Award Recommendations


	7. Board Appointments
	A. Library Board
	Printout: Library Board


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	8. Consent Agenda
	A. BOC Meeting Minutes
	Printout: BOC Meeting Minutes
	a. bocminutes_070323

	B. Budget Amendments
	Printout: Budget Amendments
	a. 23-24 BA 002 Aydlett Trustee Account
	b. 23-24 BA 003 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Grant Funding
	c. 23-24 BA 004 Sentara - Community Park Grant
	d. 23-24 BA 005 Shred Grant
	e. 23-24 BA 006 ABC Funds to Sheriff's Department
	f. 23-24 BA 007 Sentara Grant monies to Sheriff's Department
	g. 23-24 BA 008 Donations to Sheriff's Department
	h. 23-24 BA 009 Smalls Trustee Account
	i. 23-24 BA 010 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Commission Property Sold

	C. School Budget Amendments
	Printout: School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	E. Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Refunds Over $100.00
	a. July, 2023 Refunds Over $100.00

	F. Tax Collection Report
	Printout: Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 June, 2023
	b. Vehicle Refunds Over $100_July

	H. Tourism Development Authority Bylaws Update
	Printout: Tourism Development Authority Bylaws Update
	a. TDA Bylaws Rev. July 2023

	I. Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant
	Printout: Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant
	a. Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults

	J. DHHS Request - 2023 Operation Santa Claus
	Printout: DHHS Request - 2023 Operation Santa Claus
	a. Operation Santa Claus


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. Library Report
	Printout: Library Report
	a. 23-06

	C. NC Forest Service Annual Report
	Printout: NC Forest Service Annual Report
	a. NC Forest Service Annual Report

	D. New High School Progress Report
	Printout: New High School Progress Report
	a. CAMHS 20230801 Project Status Report August


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	3.A · Employee Recognition
	5.A · Public Hearing - Text Amendment to the Camden County Code of Ordinances
	5.A.a · AgendaSummary_TextAmendmentPH_2023_08_07
	5.A.b · PH_Ordinance_TextAmendment2023_08_07 (002)

	6.A · Tax Report
	6.A.a · Tax Report

	6.B · Well Site 4 Bids and Contract Award
	6.B.a · WELL 4 BID AGENDA ITEM (1)
	6.B.b · 202110 Camden Well #4 Bid Award Recommendations

	7.A · Library Board
	8.A · BOC Meeting Minutes
	8.A.a · bocminutes_070323

	8.B · Budget Amendments
	8.B.a · 23-24 BA 002 Aydlett Trustee Account
	8.B.b · 23-24 BA 003 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Grant Funding
	8.B.c · 23-24 BA 004 Sentara - Community Park Grant
	8.B.d · 23-24 BA 005 Shred Grant
	8.B.e · 23-24 BA 006 ABC Funds to Sheriff's Department
	8.B.f · 23-24 BA 007 Sentara Grant monies to Sheriff's Department
	8.B.g · 23-24 BA 008 Donations to Sheriff's Department
	8.B.h · 23-24 BA 009 Smalls Trustee Account
	8.B.i · 23-24 BA 010 Shiloh Courthouse Fire Commission Property Sold

	8.C · School Budget Amendments
	8.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.D · Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.D.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.E · Refunds Over $100.00
	8.E.a · July, 2023 Refunds Over $100.00

	8.F · Tax Collection Report
	8.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.G · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	8.G.a · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 June, 2023
	8.G.b · Vehicle Refunds Over $100_July

	8.H · Tourism Development Authority Bylaws Update
	8.H.a · TDA Bylaws Rev. July 2023

	8.I · Annual Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant
	8.I.a · Agreement for Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults

	8.J · DHHS Request - 2023 Operation Santa Claus
	8.J.a · Operation Santa Claus

	11.A · Register of Deeds Report
	11.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	11.B · Library Report
	11.B.a · 23-06

	11.C · NC Forest Service Annual Report
	11.C.a · NC Forest Service Annual Report

	11.D · New High School Progress Report
	11.D.a · CAMHS 20230801 Project Status Report August



